
Shridhar & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members ofRAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit/loss and other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. Following are the brief 
summary of Key Audit Matters: 
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Sr. 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Key Audit Matter 

Capital Advances to Related Party 
The company had made a capital advance to 
Reliance Infra Co Ltd, amount outstanding as at 
year end is Rs. 3,765 lakhs (Last Year Rs. 3,765 
lakhs). 

The management feels that no impairment loss is to 
be recognized as the full amount is receivable. 

Considering the amount involved and the 

management judgment it is a key audit matter. 

Dues from NVVN 

The Company has dues from NVVN of Rs. 3,252 
Lakh from the year 2014-15 to 2017-18 for which the 

company has filed petition before CERC challenging 

the claim 

Interest free Inter Corporate Deposit 
The Company has received ICD from group company 

on which no interest is charged. 

Amount outstanding is Rs. 68,142 Lakh (Last year 

Rs. 68,142 Lakh) 

PPA Agreement with NVVN from 2014 to 2022 

We refer to Note No 5 to the financial statements. As 

per the tenns of the PPA entered with NTPC Vidyut 

Vyapar Nigam Limited (NVVN), the Company was 

How the matter was addressed 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 

• Discussion with management 

• Ensured proper disclosure m the 
Financial Statements. 

• Against this liability Rs. 3,765 Lakh 
also parked in books 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 

• Discussion with management 
• Ensure proper discloser in financial 

statement 

Our audit procedures included the 
following: 
Discussion with management 
Ensure proper discloser m financial 
statement 
As per management under section 186 the 
transaction is covered under infrastructure 
category and hence no interest is charged. 
The company has filled Petition before 

Central Electricity Regulatory Commission 

(CERC) challenging the claim. NVVN has 

adjusted Rs 3,252 lakhs from the monthly 

required to generate minimum committed energy of invoices of the Company till the date 

219 million Units in the contract year subsequent to company obtained the stay from Delhi High 

declaration of commercial operation date (COD), else Court (DHC). Subsequent to grant of stay by 

shortfall penalty is payable as per the tenns of the DHC, NVVN has been paying against the 

PPA. The Company received minimum energy Invoices. Considering the assessment of the 

shortfall claim of Rs. 26240 lakhs from NVVN for above facts, and as legally advised, the 

FY 2014-15, FY 2015-16, FY 2016-17, FY 2017-18 Company has not considered the requirement 

and FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20. for any provision for 2020-21and2021-22. 
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

The Company has incurred a net loss of Rs. 13,623 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
accumulated loss of Rs. 1,76,708 Lakhs. We also draw attention to note 4 to the financial statements 
with respect to continuing default in repayment of outstanding dues to Lenders, as at March 31, 2022 The 
default on account of Principal was Rs. 40,903 Lakh and Rs. 18,572 Lakh towards the interest (F .Y. 2020-
21Rs.26,647 Lakh towards the Principal and Rs. 12,222 Lakhs towards the interest). 

As of that date this indicates that the Company may not meet future installments and other obligations 
through its own cash flows. The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern 
assumption for the basis stated in the said note. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the same. 

Other Information (or another title if appropriate, such as "Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon") 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for asse~ }!~ 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to goinlif¢€>)1Cern 

101-Vaibhav Chambers, Madhusudan Kelkar Marg, Behind Guru Nanak Hospital, Bandra East, AAtlm'fiti 
- 400051, Contact No. +91 2235120533 / 2235120534 I 2235120535, Email -

info@shridharandassociates.com 

('Y) 
Q) 

0.0 
ru 

'CL 



Shridhar & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable ~e,~th<:< 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality anw~u~ntttat~6 
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materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work and(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 
133 of the Act. 

e) The matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern section above, in our 
opinion, may have significant doubt on the functioning of the company. 
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f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 · 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B". 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022 on its 
financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company for the year ended March 31st 2022. 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under section 197(16): 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the 
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the 
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are 
required to be commented upon by us. 

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registratfoii'N6-f3:4427W 

Jitendra§awjia~ 
Partner 
(Membership No. 050980) 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: 03rd May 2022 
UDIN:22050980AJDYKH4527 
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Annexure "A" to Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of 

RAJASTHAN SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year 

ended March 31, 2022 

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation, of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by which all 
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this 
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically 
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies between the book 
records and the physical assets were noticed on such verification. 

( c) In respect of immovable properties comprising of land and buildings that have been taken on lease 
and disclosed as Property, Plant and Equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements 
or other relevant records are in the name of the Company. 

(d) The company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the 
frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material. 

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, limited liability partnerships 
or other party covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 

(iv) Based on the information and explanations given to us in respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 
of the Act, to the extent applicable. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act 
and the relevant rules framed thereunder. 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions relating to maintenance of 
cost records as prescribed under sub section (1) of section 148 of the act, are applicab!~::ihe 
company. 
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(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues in respect of tax deducted at source, goods and service tax, and is regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income tax, and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed dues in 

respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, goods and 

services tax and cess as at March 31, 2022 which were outstanding for a period of more than six 

months from the date, they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there are dues of income tax, as at March 31, 2022 and which have been 

deposited on account of a dispute. 

Name of the statute Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the dispute is 
dues (Rs. Lakh) the amount pending 

relates 

Income Tax Act Income Tax 30.38 F.Y.2017-18 Rectification u/s.154 is filed 

(A.Y.2018-19) 
on line and to AO. But, 
demand is not yet made nil. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records 
of the Company, no income has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to 
financial institution or bank or dues to debenture holders following instances of defaults in 
repayment of principal and interest amount. 

Sr. Name of the Amount of Defaults as Amount of Defaults Period of Default 
No. Lenders March 31, 2022 USD as March 31, 2022 as at March 31, 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 2022 

A Principle Interest 

1 ADB 1,71,15,600 65,67,464 17,953 7"' Jan 2019 

7"' July 2019 

7"' Jan 2020 

7"' July 2020 

7"' Jan 2021 

7th July 2021 

7th Jan 2022 
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2 US Exim 88,03,745 11,10,061 7515 25"' Jan 2019 

25"' July 2019 

25"' Jan 2020 

25h July 2020 

25"' Jan 2021 

25h July 2021 

25"' Jan 2022 

3 FMO Sr. 2,20,17,800 1,01,91,557 24,417 7•· Jan 2019 

7"' July 2019 

7"' Jan 2020 

7"' July 2020 

7"' Jan 2021 

7"' July 2021 

7"' Jan 2022 

4 FMO Sub 29,55,000 39,27,529 5,217 6th February 
2019, 

6th August 2019 6th 
February 2020 

6th Aug 2020 

6th February 2021 

6th Aug 2021 

6th February 2022 

TotalECB OS 5,08,92,145 2,17,96,612 55,103 

Total ECB 
(INR)(75.8071) 

B Axis Bank 23,23,03,500 20,49,02,817 4,372 For Principle 

7th July 19 

7th Oct 19 

7th Jan 2020 

7th April 2020 

7th July 2020 

7th Oct2020 

7th Jan 2021 

7th Oct 2021 

7th Jan 2022 

For Interest: 

Dec 2019 to 31st 
March 2022 
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I Total 
Outstanding 

59,4751 

(b) The Company is not declared a willful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other 
lender. 

( c) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
Offer (including debt instruments) and in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were 
raised. 

( d)As explained to us no funds were raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term 
purposes. 

( e) As explained to us the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of 
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates 

(f) As explained to us the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held 
in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

(x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were 
raised. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of whom we are unable to 
comment on any potential implications for the reasons described therein, no fraud by the 
Company or fraud on the Company by its officers and employees has been noticed or reported 
duringthecou~eofouraud~ 

(xii) The Company has not paid managerial remuneration during the current year and therefore, the 
provisions clause (ix) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in 0 
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of related party n 
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transactions as required by the applicable accounting standards have been disclosed in the 
financial statements. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company in respect of which we are unable to comment on any potential 
implications for the reasons described therein, the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred 
cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial 
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and as per management the Company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, 
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The company is not required to constitute a CSR committee as section 135 is not applicable. 

(xxi) The company is not a holding company and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registratioit'N6,;;fiA'42:7W 

Htendra S4Y"jiany 
Partner 
(Membership No. 050'9''$] 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: 03rd May 2022 
UDIN:22050980AJDYKH4527 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements of RAJASTHAN SUN 
TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD for year ended March 31, 2022 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(h) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report of even date) 

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of RAJASTHAN 
SUN TECHNIQUE ENERGY PVT. LTD as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Controls over Financial Reporting ('Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act"). 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

Because of the matter described in the Disclaimer of Opinion section below, we were not able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal financial controls system 
with reference to the financial statements of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assetsA:l.1-:fu 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Shridhar & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's RegistrationJ~sl6::fS'1:427W 

Jitendra {f.iwjiany' 
Partner 
(Membership No. 050980) 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: 03rd May 2022 
UDIN :22050980AJDYKH4527 
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

Rupees In lakhs 
Particulars Note As at As at 

No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 1,13,386 1,15,224 
Other Intangible assets 3.2 6 6 
Financial assets 
Other non-current assets 3.3 3,765 3,769 
Non Current tax assets (net) 3.4 190 184 

Current assets 
Inventories 3.5 771 651 
Financial assets 

Trade receivables 3.6(a) 4,537 3,960 
Cash and cash equivalents 3.6(b) 1,447 1,941 
Ban~ balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3.6(c) 943 1,120 
Other financial assets 3.6(d) 255 250 

Other current assets 3.7 373 376 

Total Assets 1,25,673 1,27,482 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity share capital 3.8 286 286 

Other equity 
Instrument entirely equity in nature 3.9.1 68,171 68,171 
Reserves and surplus 3.9.2 (1,19,994) (1,06,371) 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 3.10 92,353 1,03,039 
Other financial liabilities 3.11 3,765 3,765 

Provisions 3.12 60 64 
Other non-current liabilities 3.13 636 634 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 3.14 54,094 39,189 
Trade payables 3.15 

Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 62 
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

Other financial liabilities 3.16 26,098 18,451 

Other current liabilities 3.17 187 183 
Provisions 3.18 17 8 

Total Equity and liabilities 1,25,673 1,27,482 

Significant accounting policies 2 
Notes to financial statements 3 to 22 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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As per our attached report of even date 

For Shridhar & Associates 
Firm Registration No: 134427W 
Chartered Accountants 

Jitendra SaWfany 
Partner 
Membership No.050980 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 3, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Shrikant D Kulkarni 
Director 
DIN Number: 05136399 

Manoj Pongde 
Director 
DIN Number: 07728913 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 3, 2022 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Generation, adminstration and other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 

Income tax expense 

Current tax 

Loss for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) 

Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 
Basic 
Diluted 

Significant accounting policies 
Notes to financial statements 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

Note 
No. 

3.19 

3.20 

3.21 
3.22 

3.23 

10 
10 

2 
3 to 22 

Year ended 
March 31,2022 

5,597 

95 

5,692 

416 
11,310 
6,100 

1,494 

19,319 

(13,627) 

(13,627) 

4 

4 

(13,623) 

(477.08) 
(477.08) 

Rupees In lakhs 
Year ended 

March 31, 2021 

7,273 

71 

7,344 

475 
9,084 
6, 119 

1,856 

17,534 

(10,190) 

(10,190) 

18 

18 

(10,172) 

(356.74) 
(356.74) 
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Rupeeslnlakhs 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(A) Cash flow from/ (used in) Operating activities 
Net ProfiV (Loss) before tax (13,627) (10,190) 
Adjustments for: 

Interest income (45) (71) 
Finance cost 11,310 9,084 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 6,100 6,119 

Net cash generated from Operating activities 3,737 4,942 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Adjusted for: 

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (577) 157 
(Increase)/ decrease in loans and advances (1) (92) 
(Increase)/ decrease in Inventories (120) (5) 
(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables (62) 14 
(Decrease)/ Increase in other financial liabilities 635 35 
(Decrease)/ Increase in other non-current liabilities 2 131 
(Decrease)/ Increase in other current liabilities 4 84 
(Decrease)/ Increase in provisions 5 (20) 
Cash generated from operations 3,627 5,245 

Taxes paid (net of refunds) 2 (10) 
Net cash generated from Operating activities 3,629 5,235 

(B) Cash flow from/ (used in) Investing activities 

Interest received 45 71 
(Increase) I Decrease in Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 177 18 

Net cash flow for (used in) Investing activities 222 89 

(C) Cash flow from/ (used in) Financing activities 
Repayment of borrowing - secured (316) 
Interest and finance charges paid (4,029) (3,736) 

Net cash generated/ (used in) Financing activities (4,344) (3,736) 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (494) 1,588 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the quarter: 
Bank balance - current account 1,941 353 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the quarter: 
Bank balance - current account 1,447 1,941 
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 

A. Equity Share Capital (refer note 3.9) 
Ruoeeslnlakh 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 286 
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 286 
Changes in equity share capital -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 286 

B. Other Equity 
Rupees In lakhs 

Instrument entirely equitv in nature Reserves and Surplus 
Preference Shares Inter Corporate Securities Premium Retained Earnings 
Capital (refer no Deposit Account (refer no (refer no 3.9.2.2) Total 

3.9.1.1) (refer note 3.9.1.2) 3.9.2.1) 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 29 68,142 56,714 (1,52,912) (28,028) 
Profit /(loss) for the year (10,190) (10,190) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 18 18 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - (10,172) (10,172) 

Addition during the year (net) - - - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 29 68,142 56,714 (1,63,085) (38,200) 
Profit /(loss) for the year (13,627) (13,627) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 4 4 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - (13,623) (13,623) 
-

Addition during the year (net) - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 29 68,142 56,714 (1,76,708) (51,823) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment* 
Rupeeslnlakhs 

Leasehold Land Plant and equipment Buildings Furniture and fixtures Motor Vehicles Office equipment Computers Total 
Gross carrying amounf 
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 405 2,77,458 1,726 20 36 62 9 2,79,716 
Additions during the year 9 - 9 
Deductions during the year 
Adjustments (3,468) - - (3,468) 

Carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 405 2,73,999 1,726 20 36 62 9 2,76,257 

Additions during the year 17 - - 17 
Deductions during the year 
Adjustments 4,245 - 4,245 

Carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 405 2,78,261 1,726 20 36 62 9 2,80,519 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 10 1,54,053 741 14 25 62 8 1,54,913 
For the year 2 6,019 92 2 4 0 6,119 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 12 1,60,072 833 16 29 62 8 1,61,032 

For the year 2 6,008 83 1 5 - 1 6,100 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 14 1,66,081 917 17 34 62 9 1,67,132 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2021 393 1,13,926 893 4 7 1 1, 15,224 
As at March 31, 2022 391 1,12,181 810 3 2 0 1, 13,386 

*The above Property Plant and Equipment has been pledged as security (refer note 8) 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

3.2 Other Intangible assets 
Rupees In lakhs 

Computer Software 
Carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2020 96 
Additions during the year -

Carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 96 

Additions during the year -
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 96 

Accumulated amortisation 
As at March 31; 2020 90 
For the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 90 

For the year -

Balance as at March 31,2022 90 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2021 6 
As at March 31, 2022 6 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Particulars 

3.3 Other non-current assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 

Capital advances (refer note 9) 
Security deposits 

3.4 Non Current tax assets (net) 
Current tax assets (refer note 11) 

3.5 Inventories 
Stores and spares 

3.6(a) Trade receivables (Refer Note - 20) 
(Unsecured and considered good) 

Others 

3.6(b) Cash and cash equivalents 

Balance with banks: 
in current account 

3.6(c) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months 

3.6(d) Other current financial assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 
Security deposits 
Other Receivables 

3.7 Other current assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 

Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 

Prepaid expenses 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

3,765 
0 

3,765 

190 

190 

771 

771 

4,537 

4 537 

1,447 

1,447 

943 

943 

158 
96 

255 

26 

347 

373 

Rupees In lakhs 
As at 

March 31, 2021 

3,765 
4 

3,769 

184 

184 

651 

651 

3,960 

1,941 

1,941 

1,120 

1,120 

154 
96 

250 

60 

316 

376 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

3.8 Share capital 

Authorised 
4,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 4,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 1 o each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 
2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 

3.8.1 Reconciliation of number of shares 

Equity shares 
Balance at the beginning of the year - 2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 1 O each 

Balance at the end of the year - 2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 10 each 

3.8.2 Rights, preference and restriction attached to equity shares 

Equity shares 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

400 

400 

286 

286 

286 

286 

Rupees In lakhs 
As at 

March 31, 2021 

400 

400 

286 

286 

286 

286 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.1 O per share. Each holder of the equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the 
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. 

3.8.3 Shares held by Holding Company 
Equity shares 
Reliance Power Limited - Holding Company 
2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 

(Out of the above 2,856,349 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,349) equity shares are by Reliance Power Limited, the 
Holding Company and 1 Equity Share was jointly held by Reliance Power Limited and its Nominees) 

3.8.4 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 
Equity shares 
Equity shares of Rs. 1 o each fully paid up held by Reliance Power Limited - Holding Company 
Percentage of holding in the class 
Number of shares 

286 

286 

100% 
2,85,63,500 

286 

286 

100% 
2,85,63,500 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Particulars 
3.9.1 Other equity 

Balance at the end of the year 

3.9.1 Instrument entirely equity in nature 
Preference Shares 
Inter-corporate deposits 

3.9.1. 1 Preference Shares 

Authorised 
10,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 10,000,000) preference shares of Rs. 1 each 

Issued, subscfibed and paid up capital 
2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 1 each 

Reconciliation of number of shares 

Preference shares [refer note no. 3.9.1.1(a)] 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 1 each 

Balance at the end of the year - 2,856,350 (March 31, 2021: 2,856,350) shares of Rs. 1 each 

3.9.1.1 (a) Terms( rights attached to preference shares 
7.5% Compulsory Convertible Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (CCRPS) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

29 
68,142 

68, 171 

100 

100 

29 

29 

29 

29 

Rupees In lakhs 
Asa! 

March 31, 2021 

29 
68,142 

68, 171 

100 

100 

29 

29 

29 

29 

The Company shall have a call option on CCRPS which can be exercised by the Company in one or more tranches and in part or in full before the 
end of agreed tenure (20 years) of the said shares. In case the call option is exercised, CCRPS shall be redeemed at an issue price (i.e face value 
and premium). The holders of CCRPS however, shall have an option to convert CCRPS into equity shares at any time during the tenure of such 
shares. At the end of tenure and to the extent the Company or the shareholder has not exercised their options, CCR PS shall be compulsorily 
converted into equity shares. On conversion, in either case, each CCRPS shall be converted into one fully paid equity share of Rs. 1 O each at a 
premium of Rs. 990 share. If during the tenure of CCRPS, the Company declares equity dividend, CCRPS holders shall also be entitled to dividend 
on their shares at the same rate as the equity dividend and this dividend will be over and above the coupon rate of 7.5%. These preference shares 
shall continue to be non cumulative. 

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 

Preference shares [refer note no. 3.9.1.1 (a)] 
Preference Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid up held by Reliance Power Limited - Holding 
company 
Percentage of holding in the class 
Number of shares 

100% 
28,56,350 

100% 
28,56,350 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Particulars 

3.9.1.2 Movement of instruments entirely equity in nature 

Preference shares 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
894 ,000 (March 31 , 2021 : 894 ,000) shares of Re. 1 O each fully paid-up 

Balance at the end of the year - 894,000 (March 31, 2021: 894,000) shares of Rs. 10 each 

3.9. 1.3 Inter Corporate Deposit (refer note 9) 
Opening balance 
Add : received during the year 

3.9.2 Reserves and surplus 

Balance at the end of the year 
Securities premium account 
Retained earnings 

Total reserves and surplus 

3.9.2.1 Securities premium account (refer note 3.9.2.3) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

3.9.2.2 Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

3.9.2.3 Nature and purpose of other reserves: 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

29 

29 

68,142 

68,142 

56,714 
(1,76,708) 

(1,19,995) 

56,714 

56,714 

(1,63,085) 
(13,623) 

(1,76,708) 

(51,823) 

Rupees In lakhs 
As at 

March 31, 2021 

29 

29 

68,142 

68,142 

56,714 
{1,63,085) 

(1,06,371) 

56,714 

56,714 

{1,52,913) 
(10,172) 

(1,63,085) 

(38,200) 

Securities premium account: 
Security Premium account is for premium on issue of shares. The reserve would be utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 

2013. 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Particulars 
Financial Liabilities 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

Rupees In lakhs 
As at 

March 31, 2021 

3.10 Borrowings - Non-current 

Secured - at amortised cost 
Term loans: 

Rupee loans from banks 
Foreign currency loans from financial Institution/ other parties 

5,245 

87,108 

92,353 

6,385 

96,655 

1,03,039 

3.10.1 Nature of security: 

a) Term loans balance from all banks, financial Institution/ other parties of Rs.1,47,305 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : Rs.143,448 lakhs) is secured/ to be 
secured by first charge on all the Immovable and movable assets of the Company on pari passu basis and pledge of 100% of the total issued share 
capital of the Company held by the Holding Company. 

b) Current maturities of long term borrowings have been classified as other current liabilities (Refer Note 3.14) 

3.10.2 Terms of repayment of loans and rate of interest: 

a) The Rupee loan has a tenure of upto 13.5 years from the date of first disbursement will be repaid in 54 unequal quarterly instalments starting from 
January 07, 2014 and Interest rate is a floating rate linked to Axis Bank;s one year MCLR plus 3.7% p.a, payable on monthly basis. The outstanding 
balance as on year end is Rs.7534 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs.7,923 lakhs). 

b) Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties of has a tenure of upto 17.36 years from the date of first disbursement. It will be repaid 
in 33 unequal half yearly instalments starting from January 25, 2014 and carry fixed of 2.55% per annum payable half yearly. The outstanding 
balance as on year end is Rs.27,365 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs. 26,534 lakhs). 

c) Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties has a tenure of upto 17.45 years from the date of first disbursement. It will be repaid in 
33 unequal half yearly instalments starting from January 7, 2014 and carry interest rate of LIBOR plus 365 basis points per annum payable half 
yearly. The outstanding balance as on year end is Rs. 52,640 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs.51,041 lakhs ). 

d) Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties has a tenure of upto 14.45 years from the date of first disbursement. It will be repaid in 
27 unequal half yearly instalments starting from January 7, 2014 and carry fixed interest rate of 5.95% per annum, payable half yearly. The 
outstanding balance as on year end is Rs. 50,122 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs.48,600 lakhs ). 

e) Foreign currency loan from financial institution/ other parties has a tenure of upto 17 .53 years from the date of first disbursement. It will be repaid in 
33 unequal half yearly instalments starting from February 6, 2014 and carry fixed interest rate of 7.1 % per annum, payable half yearly. The 
outstanding balance as on year end is Rs.9,643 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs. 9,350 lakhs). 

3.10.3 The amortised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs. 1,232 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs. 1,522 lakhs). 

3.11 Other non-current financial liabilities 
Retention money payable (refer note 9) 3,765 3,765 

3,765 3,765 

3.12 Provisions - Non-current 

Provision for gratuity (refer note 7) 36 39 
Provision for leave entitlement (refer note 7) 24 26 

60 64 

3.13 Other liabilities - Non-current 

Advance against certified emmission reduction 636 634 

636 634 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Particulars 

3.14 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings Current 
Secured - at amortised cost 

Inter-corporate deposits from holding company (refer note 9) 

Current borrowings 
Secured - at amortised cost 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note: 3.10) 

3.15 Financial Liabilities - Trade payables Current 
Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

3.16 Other financial liabilities - Current 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 
Creditors for supplies and services 
Retention money payable 
Dues to Holding Company (refer note 9) 
Provision for Regulatory Matters (refer note 5(b)) 
Other payables 

3.17 Other liabilities - Current 

Advance against certified emmission reduction 
Other payables* 
*(Including provident fund, tax deducted at source and other miscellaneous payables) 

3.18 Provisions - Current 

Provision for gratuity (refer note 7) 
Provision for leave entitlement (refer note 7) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

302 

302 

53,792 
53,792 

1,420 
19,380 

942 
377 
304 

3,252 
422 

26,098 

176 
11 

187 

13 
4 

17 

Rupees In lakhs 
As at 

March 31, 2021 

302 

302 

38,886 
38,886 

62 

62 

1,413 
12,376 

289 
353 
304 

3,252 
464 

18,451 

176 
7 

183 

4 
4 

8 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Particulars 

3.19 Revenue from operations 

Sale of energy 

Other Operating income 
Carbon credit emission 

3.20 Other income 

Interest income: 
Bank deposits 
Other 

Other non-operating income 

3.21 Employee benefits expense 

Salaries, bonus and other allowances 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 
Gratuity and leave encashment (Refer note 7) 

3.22 Finance cost 

Interest on: 
Rupee term loans 
Foreign currency loans 
Others 

3.23 Generation, administration and other expenses 

Stores and spares consumed 
Water Charges 
Hire charges 
Rent expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 

- Plant and equipment 
- Others 

Legal and professional charges (including shared service 
charges) 
Postage and telephone 
Travelling and conveyance 
Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

5,597 

5,597 

45 

50 

95 

383 
15 
18 

416 

918 
8,388 
2,003 

11,310 

352 
317 
249 

9 

174 

81 

3 
12 
26 

195 
74 

1,494 

Rupeeslnlakhs 
Year ended 

March 31, 2021 

7,273 

7,273 

69 
1 

71 

446 
13 
16 

474 

1,048 
7,123 

913 

9,084 

605 
341 
252 

13 

215 

124 

3 
11 
20 

167 
104 

1,856 
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1) General information 

Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance Power Limited. The 
Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle to develop 100 mega watt (MW) Solar Concentrated Thermal Power Project at 
Dhursar, Near Pokhran, District Jaisalmer, Rajasthan. The Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement 
(PPA) for 100 MW capacity with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NWN). 

The Company is a Private Limited Company which is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of the 
Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is located at Ground Floor, Reliance Centre, 19, Walchand 
Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on May 03,2022. 

2) Significant accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgments: 

2.1 Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements are in compliance, in all material aspects, with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as 
amended, and rules made thereunder. 

Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in 'Indian Rupees', which is also the Company functional currency. All 
amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated. 

Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the following: 

• Certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value; 
• Defined benefit plans - plan assets that are measured at fair value; 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except certain financial assets 
and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value. 

Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

Current vis-a-vis non-current classification 

The assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheet are classified on a "current/non-current basis", with separate 
reporting of assets held for sale and liabilities. Current assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are assets 
that are intended to be realized, sold or consumed during the normal operating cycle of the Company or in the 12 
months following the balance sheet date; current liabilities are liabilities that are expected to be settled during the 
normal operating cycle of the Company or within the 12 months following the close of thefinancial year. The deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
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(b) Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at 
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted 
for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or 
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Expenditure incurred on assets which are not ready for their intended use compns1ng direct cost, related 
incidental expenses and attributable borrowing cost are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress. 

Accordingly all project related expenditure viz, civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection 
materials, pre-operative expenditure incidental I directly attributable to construction of project, borrowing cost, 
construction stores, and direct operational expenses (net of revenue during constructions) related to the units of 
power generated in the interim period, pending capitalisation, are disclosed as Capital work-in-progress. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value: 

Depreciation on PPE is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line Method (SLM) based on 
useful life of the following assets as prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in 
respect of Plant and equipment where useful life has been estimated as 25 years as prescribed under Central 
Electricity Regulatory Commission and based on Internal assessment and technical evaluation by the 
management. 

Particulars 
Buildings 
Lease hold Land 
Plant and Equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor Vehicles 
Office Equipments 
Computers 

Estimated useful lives 
3 to 30 years 
Over the lease years 
10 to 25 years 
10 years 
10 years 
5 years 
3 years 

In respect of additions or extensions forming an integral part of existing assets and insurance spares, including 
incremental cost arising on account of translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of Property, plant 
and equipment, depreciation is provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assets. 

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into account 
commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

Lease hold land is amortised over the lease period from the date of receipt of advance possession or execution of 
lease deed, whichever is earlier. 

(c) Intangible assets: 

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization I 
depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and adjustment arising from 
exchange rate variation attributable to the intangible assets. 

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets which are not ready to use at the reporting date is 
disclosed under "intangible assets under development". 

Amortisation method and periods 

Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over a period of three years. The estimated useful life and 
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets which are subject to depreciation or amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped a~evels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. 

(e) Trade Receivable 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

(f) Financial instruments: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instruments of another entity. 

Investments and other financial assets 

i. Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 

through profit or loss), and 
• those measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in 
which the investment is held. 

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes. 

ii. Measurement 

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss. 

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business 
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments: 

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt 
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using 
the effective interest rate method. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of 
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised 
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or 
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period in 
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets 
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. 
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For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the 
receivables. 

iv. Derecognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognised only when: 

• The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
• retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. 
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if 
the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the 
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the 
financial asset. 

v. Income recognition 

Interest income 

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

Dividend 

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount 
of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

vi. Derivative Financial Instruments: 

Derivative are initially recognised at fair value on the date of derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measure to their fair value at the end of the each reporting period. Further gain I (losses) 
arising on settlement and fair value change on derivative contracts are classified to finance cost. 

(g) Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

(h) Contributed equity 

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options 
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

(i) Financial liabilities 

i. Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability 
and an equity instrument. 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. 
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ii. Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

iii. Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Borrowings: Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds 
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the 
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent 
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the 
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be 
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of 
the facility to which it relates. 

Trade and other payable: These amounts represent obligations to pay for goods or services that have been 
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. These payable are classified as current liabilities 
if payment is due within one year or less otherwise they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and 
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantee contract are subsequently measured at the higher of 
the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative 
amortisation, where appropriate. 

iv. Derecognition 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that 
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash 
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses). 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a 
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the 
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the 
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial 
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach. 

(j) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle tjie obligation; and the amount has 
been reliably estimated. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present 
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not 
probable that an.~o off 1 resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, 
is termed as conrii1~~ility. 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

Contingent Assets: 

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

(k) Borrowing costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for 
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

(I) Foreign currency translation: 

i. Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements 
are presented in 'Indian Rupees' (INR), which is the Company's functional and the Company's presentation 
currency 

ii. Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions. 

All exchange differences arising on reporting of short term foreign currency monetary items other than 
derivative contracts at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss/ Capital Work-in-Progress. 

In respect of foreign exchange differences arising on revaluation or settlement of long term foreign currency 
monetary items, the Company has availed the option available in the Ind AS-101 to continue the policy 
adopted in Previous GAAP for accounting of exchange differences arising from translation of long-term 
foreign currency monetary items outstanding as on March 31, 2016, wherein: 

Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of depreciable asset 
and would be depreciated over the balance life of asset. 

In other cases, foreign exchange difference is accumulated in "foreign currency monetary item translation 
difference account" and amortised over the balance period of such long term asset I liabilities. 
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are stated at the rates prevailing on the date of the 
transactions I exchange rate at which transaction is actually effected. 

(m) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue is recognized, when the control of the goods or services has been transferred to consumers. Revenue 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts and other similar 
allowances. 

i. Sale of energy 
Revenue from sale of energy is recognised on an accrual basis and in accordance with the provisions of Power 
Purchase Agreement (PPA) with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NWN) read with Central Electricity 
Regulatory Commission (CERC) regulations. 

ii. Other operating income 
Revenue from certified reduction units is recognised as per terms and conditions agreed with trustee on future 
sale of certified emission reduction units. 

(n) Employee benefits: 

Short-term obligations 

J.-:iabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the .related service are recognised in respect of 
employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
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when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance 
sheet. 

Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 
of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the 
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements 
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss/ 
Capital Work-in-Progress. 

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when 
the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

Post employee obligations 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 
defined benefit plans such as gratuity 
defined contribution plans such as provident fund. 

Gratuity obligations 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in rupees is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of 
profit and loss/ capital work in progress. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in 
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

Defined contribution plans 

Provident fund 
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. 
The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense 
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a 
reduction in the future payments is available. 

Superannuation 
Certain employees of the Company are participants in a defined contribution plan. The Company has no further 
obligations to the plan beyond its monthly contributions which are contributed to a trust fund, the corpus of which 
is invested with Reliance Life Insurance Company Limited. 

(o) Income tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable income. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It es~rovisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it 
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the 
time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income 
tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to 
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case. the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively. 

(p) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, deposits held at call 
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less from date of acquisition that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(q) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company 
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. 

Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into 
account: 
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, 
and 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(r) Cash flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the 
available information. 

(s) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chief executive officer and the chief 
financial officer that makes strategic decisions. 

(t) Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting 
period. 

(u) Inventories: 

Inventories of tools, stores, spares parts, consumable supplies and fuel are valued at lower of weighted average 
cost, which includes all non refundable duties and charges incurred in bringing the goods to their present location 
and condition, an~izable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses. 
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2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

Preparing the financial statements under Ind AS requires management to take decisions and make estimates and 
assumptions that may impact the value of revenues, costs, assets and liabilities and the related disclosures 
concerning the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. Estimates 
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The Company make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, 
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
discussed below: 

(a) Useful lives of Power plant and depreciation method 

Management of the Company decided the estimated useful lives of power plant and respective depreciation. The 
accounting estimate is based on the expected wears and tears incurred during power generation. Wears and 
tears can be significantly different following renovation each time. When the useful lives differ from the original 
estimated useful lives, management will adjust the estimated useful lives accordingly. It is possible that the 
estimates made based on existing experience are different to the actual outcomes within the next financial period 
and could cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of Property, plant and equipments (Refer note 3.1 
and 2(c)) . 

(b) Income taxes 

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain and would get 
finalized on completion of assessment by tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome is different from the 
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in 
the period in which such determination is made. 

Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing within the tax holiday period is measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply during the tax holiday period, which is the nil tax rate. Deferred tax on temporary differences 
reversing after the tax holiday period is measured at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are 
expected to apply after the tax holiday period. Management estimates that Company is not likely to generate 
taxable income in the foreseeable future and accordingly deferred tax asset on unused tax losses is not 
recognised (Refer note 11 ). 

(c) Fair value measurement and valuation process 

The management determines the appropriate valuation technique and inputs for fair value measurement. In 
estimating the fair value, the management engages third party qualified valuer to perform the valuations if 
require. 

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances (Refer note 12). 

(d) Impairment of assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, plant and 
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

4) Delay Default in repayment of borrowing (Non-current) and interest 

The Company has delayed/defaulted in the payment of borrowings. The lender wise details are as under: 

SN Name of Lender Borrowinqs Interest 

Delay in repayment Delay in repayment 
during the year during the year 

ended March 31, Default as at March ended March 31, Default as at March 
2022 31,2022 2022 31, 2022 

Amount Period Amount Period Amount Period Amount Period 
(in (Maximum (in (Maximum (in (Maximum (in (Maximum 
lakhs) days) lakhs) days) lakhs) days) lakhs) days) 

Asian Development 
1 Bank - - 12,975 1179 1,422 632 4,979 546 

2 US Exim - - 6,674 1161 739 980 842 430 

3 FMO-Senior Debt - - 16,691 1179 1,354 998 7,726 638 

4 FMO-Sub Debt - - 2,240 1149 - - 2,977 1149 

5 Axis Bank Ltd. 316 - 2,323 998 172 775 2,049 

Total 316 - 40,903 18,572 

5) Contingent liabilities and commitments 

(a) The Company has declared its Concentrated-Solar Power (CSP) plant as commercially operational (COD) as per 
terms of PPA on November 17, 2014 against the scheduled commissioning date (SCD) of March 07, 2014 as per 
the terms of Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). The Company has filed a petition before Central Electricity 
Regulatory Commission (CERC) for extension of SCD. Pleadings in the said petition have been completed and 
the matter is to be listed for hearing. 

(b) As per the terms of the PPA entered with NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited (NWN), the Company was 
required to generate minimum committed energy of 219 Million Units in the contract year subsequent to 
declaration of commercial operation date (COD), else shortfall penalty is payable as per the terms of the PPA. 
The Company received minimum energy shortfall claim of Rs. 26,240 lakhs from NWN for FY 2014-15, FY 
2015-16, FY 2016-17, FY 2017-18, FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 and company has filled Petition before Central 
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) challenging the claim. NWN has adjusted Rs 3,252 lakhs from the 
monthly invoices of the Company till the date company obtained the stay from Delhi High Court (DHC). 
Subsequent to grant of stay by DHC, NWN has been paying against the Invoices. Considering the 
assessment of the above facts, and as legally advised, the Company has not considered the requirement for 
any provision. 

(c) Estimated amount of contracts remaining unexecuted on capital account (net of advances paid) and not 
provided for Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021 Rs 291 lakhs) 

6) Details of remuneration to auditors: 

(a) As auditors 
For statutory audit* 
For others services 

(b) Out-of-pocket expenses 
*The above amounts are exclusive of taxes 

@ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company. 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

5 
@ 
@ 

Rupeesinlakhs 
Year ended 

March 31, 2021 

5 
@ 
@ 

789 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

7) Employee benefit obligations 

The Company has classified various employee benefits as under: 

a) Leave obligations 

The leave obligations cover the Company liability for sick and privileged leave. 

Provision for leave encashment 

Current* 
Non-current 

March 31, 2022 

4 
24 

Rupeesinlakhs 
March 31, 2021 

4 
26 

*The Company does not has unconditional right to defer the settlements. 

b) Defined contribution plans 

(i) Provident fund 
(ii) Superannuation fund 
(iii) State defined contribution plans 
- Employees' Pension Scheme 1995 

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the regional provident fund commissioner 
and the superannuation fund is administered by the trust. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute 
a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. 
The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Capital work-in-progress I Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the year: 

Particulars 
Year ended 

Rupeesinlakhs 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

6 (i) Contribution to provident fund 
(ii) Contribution to employees' superannuation fund 
(iii) Contribution to employees' pension scheme 1995 
(iv) Contribution to employees' deposit linked insurance scheme 

@Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company. 

c) Post employment obligation 

Gratuity 

8 
@ @ 
6 6 
1 1 

The Company has a defined benefit plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan entitle an 
employees, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days basic 
salary for every completed years of services or part thereof in excess of six months, based on the rate of basis salary 
last drawn by the employee concerned. 

(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions 

Valuations in respect of gratuity have been carried out by an independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date, 
based on the following assumptions: 

Particulars 
Discount rate (per annum) 
Rate of increase in compensation levels 

March 31, 2022 
6.55% 

7.5% 

March 31, 2021 
6.20% 
7.50% 

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
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(ii) Balance sheet amount (Gratuity Plan) 

Particulars 

Balance as on March 31, 2020 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 
Remeasurements 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in 
interest expense/(income) 
(Gain) I loss from change in demographic assumptions 
(Gain) I loss from change in financial assumptions 
Experience (gains) I losses 
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Employer contributions 
Benefit payments 
Balance as on March 31, 2021 

Particulars 

Balance as on March 31, 2021 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 
Remeasurements 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in 
interest expense/(income) 
(Gain) I loss from change in demographic assumptions 
(Gain) I loss from change in financial assumptions 
Experience (gains) I losses 
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Employer contributions 
Benefit payments 
Balance as on March 31, 2022 

Present value of 
obligation 

57 
8 
3 

11 

(19) 

(18) 

(7) 

43 

Present value of 
obligation 

43 
7 
3 

10 

(4) 

(4) 

(-) 

49 

Fair value of plan 
assets 

Rupeesinlakhs 

Net amount 

57 
8 
3 

11 

(19) 

(18) 

43 

Rupeesinlakhs 
Fair value of plan 

assets Net amount 

43 
7 
3 

10 

(4) 

(4) 

49 

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows: 

Particulars 

Present value of funded obligations 

Fair value of plan assets 

Deficit of gratuity plan 

Unfunded plans 

Deficit of gratuity plan 

March 31, 2022 

49 
49 

Rupeesinlakhs 
March 31, 2021 

4357 
4357 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

(iii) Sensitivity analysis: 

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: 

Change in assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions 

Particulars March March March March March March 
31,2022 31,2021 31,2022 31,2021 31,2022 31,2021 

Discount rate 0.50% 0.50% -3.94% -4.09% 4.21% 4.38% 
Rate of increase in 
compensation levels 0.50% 0.50% 4.15% 4.30% -3.93% -4.06% 

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In 
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the 
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been 
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types o1 
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period. 

For unfunded plan, the Company has no compulsion to pre fund the liability of the plan. The Company's policy is not tc 
externally fund these liabilities but instead recognizes the provision and pay the gratuity to its employees directly from its 
own resources as and when the employee leaves the Company. 

8) Assets pledged as security 

Particulars 

Non-current 
Financial assets 
First char e 
Loan 

Total non current assets 

Current 
Financial assets 

............................................................................. ; 

.............................................................................. / 

651 .............................................................................. 

373 376 ! 

8326 ......... ?.1..?.~? j 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.•• .·.·.••••••m•• t • • • ••••• •••••••••••••••••J.1.?.~.1.4?~ J jjf;?~?J 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

9) Related party transactions: 

A. Investing Parties/Promoters having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly 

Companies 
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R Infra) 

8. Parties where control exists: 

Holding Company 
Reliance Power Limited (RPower) 

C. Other entities with whom transactions have been done during the year 

Fellow subsidiaries: 
Dhursar Solar Power Private Limited (DSPL) 
Vidharbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL) 
Rosa Power Supply Company Limited (RPSL) 

D. Details of transactions durin the ear and closin balance at the end of the 

Transactions 

2 

............................................................................................... ,.. .......... . 

Rupees in lakhs I 

! (ii) ~l<?!;;ill!:J ~~1~11<?~ : 
3{2621' 

Equit share capital (excludin premium 
- R Power 

Pr(;!f(;!~(;!l1C::(;! ~~~~(;! c::~pi~l((;!)(C::ll:f~i11g Pr(;!'!lil:''!IL 

- R Power 

; ................................... €:!t€:!11.t.i.c:>l1P~Y~l:>.l(;! ... !c:>.~~.r.~.~ ... f: ... P ...... c ......................................................................................... , ................................................................................ . 
i... -Rinfra 3, 3, 

L Other current financial Asset .. s ................................................................................................ , ......................................................................................................................................................................... ., 

- R infra 
Other current liabilities 
- R Power 
-RPSL 

A~Y~llC::(;! ~9~i11~! l:P~ c::<:>11!r~c::L 
- R infra 

..... 111!€:!r. c::<:>r.P<?r~!(;! ~€:!P<?~i!p~y~b .... 1 .. e .......................................................................................... , ...................... . 
~ R l:>c:>l;\/(;!r(J:)(;!(;!'!l(;!cj (;!gl:fiM .... . 

3,765 3,765 ................................................... ·:·· ................................................................... ! 
....................................................... J........... ·········! 

- R Power 
Guarantees Issued on behalf otihE;Co~ 

..................................................................................... f .......... . ·········i 

- R Power 
... l ............. . 

11,471 11,4 71 

(iii) The above disclosures do not include transactions with public utility service providers, viz: electricity, 
telecommunications in the normal course of business. 

(iv) The Company has entered intn..a..memorandum of understanding for sharing of certain assets between the 
Company and DSPL. 
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10) Earnings/ (Loss) per share: 

Particulars 
················································································································································································-:.: .. · Year ended I Year ended 

l\/lt:1r1?t1 ~1L?9?? · rylcirc;b}J, ?Q?L 
P~<?fi!f(l:c:>!>!>Jt:11.'t:1ilt;1~IE) !() E!9l1ity !>tlCIEE!h()lc:IE!E~ + 

, f\!E)tpr()~(C1ft€lr t§)((fl,){131JP€l€l? ill lc:i~b~L : .............................. -... .. . 
: Y\'E:JigbtE:Jc:l Cl\IE:Jrc:igE)lllJrllqE:Jrc:>fE?9L.Jity§bClrE)~{f:?} , ...........................•.... 
i '?Cl~ic; E!CIE':!ir:lg~ PE!r ~tlCIE€l (,LY'?) ((~l1PE!E!~L . 
i Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of conversion i 

r€lf€lE€lll(;E:l ?bC1TE:l~ (QL ....... ,· .................................................................................. , ................................................................... . 
i hted ayE:Jrc:igE:J 111Jr11q€Jrc:>f~bC1E€li>f<:>~Qil1Jt€lc:l f::P§(P::l?:t:9L .... , ............................. 5 ......... 7 ..... 1 ..... 2 ......... 7 .... o ..... o ............. , ............................... 5 ........ 7 ...... 1 .... 2 .... JQQ J 

nin s per share (AID) Rupees)* 477.08 (~!)(),?.4.L : 
ominal value of an e uit share Ru ees 1 O 1 O 

*7.5% compulsory convertible redeemable non-cumulative preference shares had anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share 
and have not been considered for the purpose of computing diluted earnings per share. 

11) Income taxes 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as under: 

(t:1lTt1E! ~E!c;<?riC?ili<:t!ic:>ri c:>f!Cl>C E!>CPE!r1~E! <1ric:I !t1E!C11?<?<:>l1ritiri9 prgfi! '!1l11!ipliE!c:I qy !t:IJ< r<l!E! : ~~P~~~j~ l~~h~ I 
Particulars j l\/ICl~l?t1}1 1 }Q?? ............ Mc:irc;b}J, ?Q?1 
Pr<:>~!/(~()!>~L~Eif<:>r€l !C1)( (A) L .. 13 ,627 1 

at the Indian tax rate of 26% 2020-21 -26%) 3, j?,()4.~): 

..... ~:.l~~;;~~J~~;~~.J~~;;~:~ .. are not deductible(taxable) in ...................................................................................... [ ..... . 
.... .......... P.€l.f€l.~~E:Jc:ltc:iJ< .. C1 .. S..?.€l.!.~.f1<:>!E€lc;<:>gf1i§E:Jc::l .. c:>11 .. i'IlPC1irr11E:J11t .. 1c:i§~ ..... . . ................ ~ ...... .. 

Deferred tax assets not recognised on tax loss for the year 4,855 1 2,226 

; ....... 

QtbE:Jr ?c:li1J~trJ1E)f1t~{l1€lt) ............ (4..??.!5) 
··············································································· .... ····························~······ . 

ears 

c Tax liabili!iE!~!J~~~E!!~J: Ru eesTnfakhs . 
J='r()yis.i<:>f1 f<:>r if1<?()'IIE:!!CIJ<(C1c:IYC111(;E:l tc:iJ<)::9PE?f1il19 ~CllClf1C::E?? 0?4.LL (1~~L! 

. Taxes paid (net of refund) j6) I 9 
:······¢~fr~6Di:l~P~Yi~i~fC:fr•ih.~···YE:Jci.r....... . .. .-. .....•............................................................................... , ....... , 

lf1g()'!1€l t§)(f<:>rE:Jc:i.r.liE:JryE)§E§ .. ... ................... ............ < . 

~)(C::€l§~pr()yis.iC?lll;\/EittE)r1 ()ff j 
pr()yi~ic:>f1f<:>r income tax (advance tax) - Closinq balances (196) · (1?4.L 

Jc:ltI~>e l()§§E!!> : R~P.~~~i~i~kh~ : 
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been 
~€lC::<:>9rii~E)c:l • • mm •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• •••• J 71,723 
Potential Tax benefits 26% 

*The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets on carried forward business losses and unabsorbed depreciation 
as the company does not have reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
deferred tax assets can be realized 
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12) Fair value measurements 

(a) Financial instruments by category 

March 31, 202.? 

Bank deposits with more than 12 
months maturit 

Financial liabilities 

f:lc:irrgyv.ir:Jg§. . 
Other financial liabilities ............................................... ,, ....................................................................... . 

i Derivatives Liabilities 

f r~t~I fi~~~~i~i ii~biiiti~~ 

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

FVPL 

. ........................... ~······/······ 

ortised 
cost FVPL 

Amortised 
cost 

mm•••••••••••• +•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••+••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• ! 

154 

3,960 

1,60,378 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that 
are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed 
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the 
Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An 
explanation of each level follows underneath the table. 

:Assets and 1iahfiffies wl1Tch are measured at Levef1 
amortised cost for which fair values are disclose as 
at March 31, 2022 

Financial assets 

Financial Liabilities 
Others financial liabilities 

' Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised 
cost for which fair values are disclose as at March 31, 
2021 

L. ..... . 
Financial assets 

- I 

Level 1 

L §~<?~rity <:lE:JP<:>§.it~ 
· Total financial assets 

··················································~······ .. 

.............. ~ ···············································~· 

Financial Liabilities 
·····~······ .. ................................... ..1 

Level3 

.................................... 1 ..... . 

.................................... ! ..... . 
- i 3,765 ! 

1,76,091 

L 1·?~!~?~ I 

~l:IPl:l.~i:>ir:i lakhs 
Total 

.. ........................................ :::::::::] 

3,?£3.?.J 
1,76,091 

1.z~~~??J 

Rupees in lakhs 
Level 2 Levef3 · i'otaf 

............................ ;.............. J 
4 
4, ................ ; ............................•.........................••...............• 

................................................. , 
3,765 ! ! Others financial liabilities ............................................................... 1 ....................................... :: ..... i ..... ····· 

Lf:lc:irtqwiri,g§. 
! Total financial liabilities 

+ . 1,55,715 ! 

1,55,715 : 
5: 

3,765 j 1,59,480 i 
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(c) Valuation processes 

The Company obtains assistance of independent and competent third party valuation experts to perform the valuations of 
financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of 
valuation processes and results are held between the Company and the valuer on periodically basis. 

Discount rates are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. 

(d) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 

March 31 2022 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 

.: .. : .. :.: .. :·.<> .. :::.................................................................... •. ...... : ..... ::: .. ::: .. • .. ::: ......... :: ...... , 1 J§,Q~L 
~.??.£> .. 

1,79,856 

in lakhs 
March 31 2021 

Carrying 
amount 

4 

Fair value 

4 
4 

......... 1 .. titi.?Jti .... ; .................................... : . ..' ... : .... :: ..•... : ... :: .. ::: ..... ., 
................... ~ .. ??£> .... . 

159,480 
................. },?(')£) 

1,64,871 

*Carrying amount of borrowing includes long term borrowing, current maturity of long term borrowing and interest accrued 
but not due on borrowing. 

The carrying amount of current financial assets and liabilities (other than current maturity of long term borrowing and 
interest accrued but not due on borrowing which have been considered as part of borrowing) are considered to be the 
same as their fair values, due to their short term nature. 

The fair value as of March 31, 2022 of the long-term Borrowings with floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to 
interest rate changes, and will not be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in 
the under-lying credit risk of the Company borrowing (since the date of inception of the loans). 

For financial assets and liabilities that are measures at fair value, the carrying amount is equal to the fair values. 

Note 

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter 
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little 
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the 
instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities which are included in level. 

There were no transfers between any levels during the year. 

The Company's policy is to recognise transfer into and transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the 
reporting period. 
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13) Financial risk management 
The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit 
risk. 

Risk 
Credit Risk 

Liquidity Risk 

Market risk -
foreign exchange 

Market risk -
interest rate 

(a) Credit risk 

Exposure arising from 
Cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables and financial assets 
measured at amortised cost. 

Borrowings and other liabilities 

Recognised financial assets and 
liabilities not denominated in Indian 
rupee (INR) 

Long-term borrowings at variable 
rates 

Measurement 
Aging analysis 

Rolling cash flow forecasts 

Sensitivity analysis 

Sensitivity analysis 

Management 
Only high rated 
banks/institutions are 
accepted. 

Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities 
Partly hedge by foreign 

exchange forward, cross 
currency and call spread 
contract 
Partly hedge by Interest rate 

swap 

The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation 
resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial assets 
carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to trade 
customers towards sale of electricity as per the terms of PPA, CERC and with public sector undertakings. 

Credit risk management 

Credit risk is managed at Company level depending on the policy surrounding credit risk management. For banks 
and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted. Generally all policies surrounding credit risk 
have been managed at Company level except for those surrounding accounts receivable balances. 

The Company has a PPA with a large public limited Company. The credit risk is considered to be low. The procurer 
has been paying the dues on a timely basis during the year. 

(b) Liquidity risk 

(i) Management monitors the rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash 
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. As the Company does not have sufficient operational cash 
inflows the Company is largely dependent now upon the parent company's support (Refer note4 above). 

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The amounts disclosed in the below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 
months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant 

. l?c:>rr()Y>'il19§:Jl3~f~El12t~42 

. Trt:i<:IE?P?Y?~I~§. 
1 .... 9.r.~.<:l.i.tg.r§.f()r §1Jppli~§ 911<:1 §.E?.ryic:;E?§ 

1 ..... R~t-~.11.t_i()l1 .... f11()f1.E?Y .. P?Yt:l~.1E? .... 
i ..... P.l1.~§ .. ~c:>f::l()l<:li11g 9c:>.f11.P?f1i~§ ..... 

Other financial liabilities 
I Total Non-derivatives Financial 

liabilities 

Rupeesinlakhs 
Less than 1 Between year Morethan5 ~~~~ 1 ' 

....... ....................... .Y.(;l~E .. ................ ~11<:1 ?Y(;l~T~ .......... , ........................... Y •... e ..... a ...... r ... s ................................ , ............................................................................. , 
....................... , ........................................................................... , ............................................................................ i 

72,200 i 33,346 1,83,427 i 77,8 

................................. ~ ..... . 

-- ~ 

·········································~-~--···-i······ 

···············~······ 

942 ' 
...... L .... .............................................................. , 

4,142 ! ................................ ..1 ............................................................................................... .. 
3641 

'''''''""''''''''"' '''''''OOO•O~ ''"""''''''""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""OOOOOOOOoO•••••••••••••OHOOOOo]ooOOOOOOOOooOOO OoooO 

mm•••••••• .~.(')?4 L ml \ 

L ~~1~4? i z?.?QQ I ~~.~~~r 
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March 31, 2021 
i ...... 

Non-derivatives Financial liabilities 

L f?()Tr()'l>,lirlg~~ .... 

, T~Cl9E:lPCIY§l~IE:J~ 

I ~~i:~~~;~~~~:~~~;~~~qit~rE:J 
I P~E:l~ ~() lj()lqirig G<:>~PClrliE:J~ 

Other financial liabilities 
f fotalfNion-derivatives Financial 

liabilities 

Less tha 

... J Y«:!Ci~. 

...................... ??. 

4, 118 ! ....... ~ .............................................. 304···T·· .. 

: ~.?J~I 

.. §!:i1!:i!:i~I 

tween 1 year More than 5 
Rupeesinlakhs 

Total '"Jq !:i Y«:!Cir!;; . Y«:!Cit!;; 

70,973 : 49,438 ......... .1 ... .?.7.4?1. 
·····~""'f""" 

.............................. •···· ~-···· ............................. 1 .... . 

~ : ~ r 4 . ................................................. ! ................................................................... , 

~ 1 }94i 
..................................... f ..... . - : 3716 : 

.?Q.~?~ L . 1,85,970 

*Includes contractual interest payments based on the interest rate prevailing at the reporting date. 

(c) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
volatility of prices in the financial markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: a) Foreign currency risk and 
b) Interest rate risk. 

(i) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has long term monetary liabilities which are in 
currency other than its functional currency. Foreign currency risk, as defined in Ind AS 107, arises as the value of 
recognised monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due to changes in 
foreign exchange rates. 

While the Company has direct exposure to foreign exchange rate changes on the price of non-Indian Rupee­
denominated borrowings. For that reason, the below sensitivity analysis may not necessarily indicate the total 
effect on the Company's net assets attributable to holders of equity shares of future movements in foreign 
exchange rates. 

• Foreign currency risk exposure: 

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk (all in USO $) at the end of the reporting period expressed in 
INR, are as follows. 

Financial liabilities 

·n s 

Total Financial liabilities 

Tot(il <:;()Y«:!~~q ~y q«:!~iy(i~iY«:!!:l 
r.,r~t exposure to foreign currenc risk 

• Sensitivity of foreign currency exposure 

1,47,305 
3,765; 

1,51,070 ! 

1,51,070 

Rupeesinlakhs 

rch 31, 2021 

.............. ? .• .?~4 
......... J .. 4:~.?.?.~? .. 

1,49,297 

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated 
financial instruments. 

·················1·1n·J>actonprofithetoretcix·r· 

.9.~.PJ.~~-~----~~r.~.=~-·~-~ ... Pr~.9.r~.~.~-~-~---··· ........... J 

rch 31, 2022 MCIT~h 31, 20 

**The above impac~ assessed taking into consideration the accounting policy adopted by the Company 
for the accountin~ Miml~change differences. (Refer note 2.1 (I) above). 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the 
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2021 the Company's borrowings at variable rate 
were mainly denominated in USO. 

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest 
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate 
because of a change in market interest rates. 

• Interest rate risk exposure 
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as 
follows: 

Rup~~~ifll~~~~ : 

i M~;~h31;2o22 I M?rc:t1}1,?.Q?1, 
~g;jj§J ?~.?~Q ' 

• Sensitivity of Interest 

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. 

Rupeesinlakhs 

, illjJ?~~f<>.~efC?rif~~f<>.f~~~ 
, r<;~}~.} M?~<::t1}1, ?Q?1 
: ............................................................................... ,,, .......................................................................................................................................................................... ... 

L I rit<?r<??t r?tt:ll3 :::: iric;r<?9.l3<? t:Jy t5°t'<i ()f:l f:!J<i?t!f19 lrit<?rt:l?t <::()?r 
tes - decrease b 5% on existin Interest cost* ........ ., ................................................... t····· 

in all other variables constant 

14) Capital Management 

(a) Risk Management 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to 
reduce debt. (Refer note 4 above) 

The Company monitors capital on basis of total equity and debt on a periodic basis. Equity comprises all components 
of equity includes the fair value impact. The following table summarizes the capital of the Company: 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

15) Segment reporting 

Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz 'Generation of Power' and as such there is no separate 
reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'. Presently, the Company's operations are predominantly 
confined in India. The Company's Board of Directors are chief operating decision makers of the Company. 

Information about major customers 

Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 were from customers located in India. Customers 
include private distribution entities. Revenue to specific customers exceeding 10% of total revenue for the years 
ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 were as follows (refer note 2(n)(i): 
, ............................................ ,. .............................................................................................................. . . ..............•.•••••....................... ,.., 

....................... MC3r~b}1, ?Q?J ........................................ . 
Revenue In lakhs Percent ' 

1•••N±P¢••Y.i~y~t yy§r~~Ni9?.~···hi~ii~~··· •:•••••• q.5 .... 9 ...... 7 .................................... . 
......................................... 

100% 

16) Exchange Difference on Long Term Monetary Items 

As explained above in note 2.1 (I) with respect to exchange differences, the Company has adjusted the value of Rs. 
4,245 lakhs Loss in PPE (March 31, 2021: adjusted the value of Rs 3,468 lakhs Gain in PPE towards the 
exchange difference arising on long term foreign currency monetary liabilities towards depreciable assets. 

17) The information for Self- generated Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) relating to certified emission rights are as 
follows:-

"""""'"'"•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••""'V"'•••'"'""" 

Sr. Particulars For the year ended For the year encjed' i 

N()'. . ·'·· .. .. ~Ci~C:~}~1 ?9?? MC3t~b :3 .... 1 ............................. : ....... , 
a) No. of CE Rs held as inventory and the basis of valuation 

''''"'''''''"'"'''"''""""""""1 ........ ,. ..... . 

'b No. of CERs under certification 
c) Depreciation and operating and maintenance costs of 

............ . L ~l'lli~~i?~ ~~duction equipment expensed during the year 

64,64 

18) Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006" has been determined based on the information available with the Company and the required 
disclosure are given below. 

Rupeesinlakhs 
i=oriheyearencieci' i=0rtheyeareilcied 1 

I (a)i'heprincipaTamount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of 
March 31, ?9??_ }ylc:ir~b}~.?Q?~I 

I tb<? C3~~()(Jf1!i11g Y<??E(~<?f<?r ll<?tf;) :3:1E3 (§)) + 

· ~ricj~;tt~~t~~;~~~Ln~~;~~~~ remaining unpaid to supplier as at the ............. .... @ .. J 
: (c )The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with the 
, amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
I <:iL1~i11gtQf;)Y€JC3t . 
i .... (ci)I.b.€l ... ?~()(J.l1f()f .. i.11tf:lrf:l~.t ... cilJ.<?.?r1ciPC3Y., .. a .... b ....... 1 .. e ....... f .... o, ... r ... , .. t ... h ...... e ...... , ... e ...... a ...... r., ..... , ................ , .......................... , ......... , ....... , .................................................................................................. .. 
i (e)The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end • 
Ltb<? 9~~()(Jt:iti11gyf;)9r .. . . @ ................................. J 
I (f)The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
I succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
L .. ~.~!.~.9 . .IJ.Y .. .P.~!.9........ . ........... L .. . . ........................................... 1 ..... . 

@Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company. 

62 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

19) Net debt reconciliation 
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••v ••••••••••••••••••••>-••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••;-•••• 

Rupeesinlakhs 
Year ended 

ulars 31,202? March 31,2021 

.......................................................... .J 

1,03,039 
............................................. ······ ·······-~ 

of Effective Rate of Interest 289 247 

~ f::)(<:;~?ll9~(g?ill)J I()?? 
~~p9ic:f cJ(JTif1g ~~~YE:l?r.!p~ri()c:f 

I Closing Balance 
···········································································································································································································----·························+························································· 

68,444 

68,444 

............................ -'I ............................................................................ ;: .. 
.. r ... e ...... s .... t ...... a.".c., ... c ..... r ... u ..... e ..... d ........ b ..... u ...... t ..... n ..... o ..... t .. ".d ..... u ..... e ........ o ....... n ....... b ..... o .... "r .. ro ........ w .. ,, .. i .. n ... ,-.. s .. , ..... ,.o ....... , ..... e .... n __ i_n_ ~··'·····························································································;···············································1···· ? .. ??~. 

i Gb?r9E:i ?::; PE:lr $!?tE:if!1E:lf1! Pr()~t §< l,,()i:;::; J 11,?JQ L 
t9.b?ll9E:i::; i11f?ir'!?l[JE:i L , 

..................... E)?.4.4.'1: .... 

8688 
9084 

I ~ 1~p9i:;t ()fl::ffE:i<::tiyE:i R?tE:i ()f 111tE:irE:i::;t ; (?~Q) , (?4?L 
1- Im act of MTM Derivative valuation - . . -

... P?ic:fJ() hE:!llc:fE:lri:> 

L'rit'§lf~:§! accrued but not due/ and due on borrowin s 

20) Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule : 

Particulars OS for Following period from Due date of Payment 
Less than 1 1 - 2 Year 2- 3 Years More than 3 
Year Year 

Undisputed Trade 1,285 - - -
Receivables 

- Considered 
Good 

Undisputed Trade - - - -
Receivables 
Considered doubtful 
Disputed Trade - - - 3,252 
Receivables 

- Considered 
Good 

Disputed Trade - - - -
Receivables 
Considered Doubtful 
Total 1,285 3,252 

GE?E3). 
13,78f!j 

Rs. In Lakh 

Total 

1,285 

3,252 

-

4,537 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued) 

21) Ratios: 

Sr Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

A Current ratio 
0.10 0.14 

B Debt Equity ratio 
-1.56 -1.52 

c Debt Service Coverage ratio 
-0.20 0.11 

D Return on Equity ratio 
0.26 0.27 

E Inventory turnover ratio 
7.26 11.17 

F Trade Receivables turnover ratio 
1.23 1.84 

G Trade Payables turnover ratio 

H Net Capital turnover ratio 
-0.11 -0.19 

I Net Profit ratio 
-2.43 -1.40 

J Return on capital employed 
-0.14 -0.10 

K Return on Investment 
0.26 0.27 

• Current Ratio: Current Assets/Current Liabilities 

• Debt Equity Ratio= Total Debt I Equity excluding Revaluation Reserve 

• Debt Service Coverage Ratio= Earnings before Interest and Tax and exceptional items I (Interest on Long 
Term and Short Term Debt for the period/year+ Principal Repayment of Long Term Debt for the period/ 
year) 

• Return on Equity = Net profit I Shareholder's fund 

• Inventory turnover ratio = Turnover I Average inventory 

• Trade Receivables turnover ratio= Turnover I Average Receivables 

• Trade Payables turnover ratio = Turnover I Average Payables 

• Net Capital turnover ratio = Turnover I Capital Employed 

• Net Profit ratio = Net Profit I Turnover 

• Return on capital employed = Net Profit I (Debt +Equity) 

• Return on Investment = Net profit before interest and dividend I Equity 



Rajasthan Sun Technique Energy Private Limited 
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22) The figures for the previous year are re-classified I re-grouped, wherever considered necessary. 
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